
 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
 

 
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
Tuesday, June 16, 2015, 7:00 PM 

The Forum, 100 State Street 
 

1. Roll Call 

 

2. Minutes of the April 21, 2015 Meeting 

 

3. Public Comments 

 

4. St. Paul’s Church – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2015-16 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to add storage 

shed behind church structure at 212 W. Grand Avenue. 

 

5. Robert LaFleur and Patricia Zody – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2015-17 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to replace 

decorative scallops above front porch of residential structure located at 709 Harrison Avenue. 

 

6. Patrick Gathof – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2015-21 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to demolish a 

garage at a residential property located at 633 Church Street. 

 

7. Report on Staff-Approved Certificates of Appropriateness & Activities Since Last Meeting 

 

8. Committee Reports 

 A. Education & Outreach Committee 

 B. Grant Writing Committee 

 C.  Site Visit Committee 

 

9. Adjournment 
 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, notify the Planning Office at 364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM 
the day before the meeting. 
    
Approved: Alex Morganroth, Planner 
   June 3, 2015 
 

**  Please note that upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of 

disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information or to request this service, please 

contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511. 
 



 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
Tuesday, April 21, 2015, 7:00 PM 

The Forum, 100 State Street 
 

1. Roll Call 

 Chairperson Blazer called the meeting to order at 7:04pm. 

 Commissioners Blazer, Johnson, Joyce, Truesdale, and Kaye were present. 

 Commissioners Vollmer, Haynes, and Vater were absent. 

 

2. Minutes of the February 17, 2015 Meeting 

Commissioner Johnson moved to approve the Minutes. Commissioner Joyce seconded the 

motion. The motion passed unanimously (5-0). 

 

3. Public Comments: 

Rick McGrath (1747 Sherwood Drive SW) commented on the Certificate of Appropriateness for 

the proposed demolition of 422 Bluff and 310 Euclid. He stated that he believes the house at 422 

Bluff is too far gone. However, he believes that there might be a way to save the house on Euclid. 

He understands that it is not currently habitable, but suggested perhaps finding a way to turn the 

house so that it faces Bluff, which he knows can be quite pricey. Mr. McGrath stated that he did 

not understand the rush to demolish the house as once it is gone, there are no options. He 

suggested that it be boarded up and mothballed until more research has been done on how to save 

the house. Mr. McGrath referenced the April 16
th

 edition of the Janesville Gazette, stating that 

the City of Janesville was able to move a historic home across the street so, it is a possible, 

although expensive, task. He asked the commission to wait and consider different options for the 

house at 310 Euclid, mentioning that once it is torn down, there will be an empty, vacant lot. Mr. 

McGrath also noted that if someone does purchase the land in the future, the house that would be 

built on that lot would not be keeping with the times. 

 

4. Dennis Keeney – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2015-04 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to replace 

windows in the residential structure located at 817 Bluff Street. 

 

Director of Planning & Building Services Drew Pennington read the staff report and 

recommendations. He also provided pictures of the windows to be replaced. 

 

Mr. Keeney was present at the meeting. He stated that removing the aluminum storm windows 

should be more appropriate. He also continued to explain the issues he had experienced in the 

past with squirrels chewing the wood windows.   

 

Commissioner Johnson inquired as to whether or not the applicant had researched repairing the 

windows instead of replacing them. Mr. Keeney explained that the windows had sustained too 



much damage and were not repairable. He also explained that the house originally had stucco 

wood siding which provided bees with a place to live. Mr. Keeney stated that the wood windows 

would be more expensive than the vinyl.  

 

Commissioner Johnson asked if the applicant has considered how the house will look with the 

new windows. Mr. Keeney stated that the windows will look the same, that the only difference 

would be that the aluminum would not be there. The vinyl that would be replacing the aluminum 

is also designed to look like wood and to match the surrounding wood.  

 

Commissioner Kaye asked whether there are other windows that will also need to be replaced. 

Mr. Keeney explained that due to lack of funds, he can only afford to do a few at a time.  He also 

mentioned that the contractor had mentioned the possibility of being able to save a few of the 

windows upstairs.  

 

Chairperson Blazer asked for clarification on the “like-style” condition in the staff report. He 

asked if the condition required the upper sash to have the four pane pattern.  

 

Mr. Pennington stated that it would be ideal to have the four pane pattern; however, the applicant 

is not proposing that same style. Mr. Keeney added that the four pane pattern appeared to have 

been added after the fact to give the windows an older appearance.  

 

Commissioner Joyce made a motion to approve the COA as recommended in the staff report.  

Commissioner Kaye seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously (5-0). 

 

5. Richard LaGrant – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2015-07 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to close two 

window openings and to replace windows in the residential structure located at 249 Roosevelt 

Avenue. 

 

Mr. Pennington read the staff report and recommendation. He also provided additional pictures of 

the property.  

 

Commissioner Joyce asked for clarification on which windows the applicant wanted to replace in 

his home. Mr. Pennington and other Commission members explained to Commissioner Joyce 

which windows were being replaced.  

 

Commissioner Johnson stated that she was glad to see the house being returned to a single family 

home and that it will be a real asset to the neighborhood. 

 

Commissioner Truesdale inquired into the cost of the house. It was unknown at the time. 

 

Commissioner Blazer mentioned that during his site visit, he noticed a window in the front of the 

house with an arch over it in the gables. He stated that from the inside, it really is not an arched 

window. However, the applicant assured Mr. Blazer that the window would look the same. 

 

Commissioner Joyce made a motion to approve the COA as recommended in the staff report.  

Commissioner Kaye seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously (5-0). 

 

6. Julie Christensen, Community Development Director – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2015-09 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to demolish the 

structures located at 422 Bluff Street. 

 



Mr. Pennington read the staff report and recommendation. 

 

Ms. Christensen explained the bidding process. She stated that it was necessary to open the bid 

process twice as the first time there were no bids. The second time, they only obtained two bids. 

She also explained how the move would be paid for, partially out of HOME funds and CDBG 

funds, as well.  

 

Ms. Christensen also explained that there was not anything that could be changed to scale back 

the price of remodeling the home at 310 Euclid. She agreed with Mr. McGrath, stating that the 

house at 422 Bluff is no longer structurally sound due to neglect from the homeowner. The 

limestone structure is compromised at 422 Bluff, however; that is not the case for 310 Euclid. 

The issue with 310 Euclid is funding.  

 

Ms. Christensen expounded on the approval process for this Certificate of Appropriateness. She 

stated that this motion will still be going to City Council for a final decision as the lot is City 

property but the City Manager wanted the Landmarks Commission to be in agreement with the 

decision. She also addressed a past inquiry as to why excess HOME funds could not be used in 

future years. According to the regulations, there is a limit on the amount of loans they will allot 

for each individual property.    

 

Commissioner Joyce asked why 310 Euclid could not stay where it is presently located if the 

house at 422 Bluff were torn down. Ms. Christensen explained that there would still be a hole in 

the Bluff Street District and that the house is very close to the neighbor’s property.   

 

Commissioner Kaye inquired into the cost of repairing 310 Euclid. Ms. Christensen explained 

that if the house were to remain in place, it would need to be rebid. She also mentioned that the 

bid that was submitted included the price of a garage. Ms. Christensen suggested that, if the 

house were to remain on site, the City look into installing a picket fence so that it would be more 

fitting with the area. In this way, a future homeowner would be less likely to install an 

inappropriate fence.  

 

Commissioner Kaye asked Ms. Christensen about a brick house located across the street from the 

house at 310 Euclid. Mrs. Christensen stated that that particular house was owned by a private 

citizen and not the City. Although, she did add that the City was working with the homeowner to 

donate it to the City. The house itself is in very good structural condition and should be able to be 

rehabilitated.  

 

Commissioner Kaye followed up asking if there were a different house that might be less 

expensive to replace 422 Bluff and 310 Euclid (if it were torn down). Ms. Christensen stated that 

anything is possible but both the houses would need to be demolished in order for that to be in 

compliance with zoning.  

 

Commissioner Johnson wanted to clarify that, according to the Historical Society in Madison, 

once a historical house is moved from its original location, it is no longer considered an historical 

home.  

 

Commissioner Johnson asked Ms. Christensen if selling the property to a private citizen had been 

considered. Ms. Christensen explained that previous attempts at selling to a citizen have not been 

encouraging.  She referenced 326 St. Lawrence (a house in considerably better condition than 

310 Euclid) as an example. She stated that there were no offers for 326 St. Lawrence, and given 

the condition of 310 Euclid, it is unlikely anyone would want to do the work. Commissioner 



Johnson explained that a private citizen would not be required to meet all of the regulations 

imposed by HOME funds like the City would be.  

 

Commissioner Blazer wondered whether or not it would be possible to offer the house to be 

moved across the street to a city owned lot. Ms. Christensen explained that the house would have 

to be advertised through a public process, however; it would be better to leave it on the same lot 

instead of trying to move to a different lot.  

 

Commissioner Joyce inquired as to how the Commission could save the house located at 310 

Euclid and approve the demolition of 422 Bluff. Mr. Pennington explained that it is possible to 

amend the Certificate of Appropriateness to reflect that condition.  

 

Commissioner Johnson stated she believes that the Commission’s first and foremost 

responsibility is preservation. She stated that she thinks the City should board up both of the 

houses and not make a hasty decision regarding demolishing them.  

 

Mr. Blazer explained that, per zoning regulations, both houses cannot be on the property. Ms. 

Christensen confirmed this and also further expounded on the major, multiple issues of 422 

Bluff; concluding that it is not salvageable like 310 Euclid.   

 

Commissioner Truesdale suggested that the Commission separate how to deal with each of the 

houses individually. Ms. Christensen suggested dividing the two houses on the Certificate of 

Appropriateness to be brought before council.  

 

Commissioner Joyce made a motion to approve the COA, subject to the conditions recommended 

in the staff report and an explicit modification (condition) stating that only 422 Bluff Street may 

be demolished, and that 310 Euclid Avenue may not be demolished at this time.  Commissioner 

Johnson seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously (5-0).  

 

7. Report on Staff-Approved Certificates of Appropriateness & Activities Since Last Meeting 

 

 Mr. Pennington announced approval of the following: 

 Roof replacement and storm window repair at 720 Bluff Street; 

 Driveway replacement and gutter repair at 709 Harrison Avenue; 

 Roof replacement at 916 Bluff Street; and 

 A backyard chicken coop at 843 Bluff Street. 

 

Mr. Pennington inquired into whether or not the Commission wanted to review the chicken coop 

applications for historic properties. The Commissioners agreed that chicken coops are eligible for 

staff approval. 

 

Mr. Pennington also announced that a new Planner has been hired, and will be starting on April 

29, 2015. 

 

8. Committee Reports 

A. Education & Outreach Committee 

The committee had nothing to report. Commissioner Johnson asked Mr. Pennington if there were 

any new home owners in the district. Mr. Pennington was not aware of any new home owners at 

the time of the meeting.  

 

B. Grant Writing Committee 



Commissioner Joyce explained that the Landmark Commission had received the grant from the 

State to do a Historic Survey of the City of Beloit. Beloit College will be providing an intern to 

assist.  Commissioner Joyce explained that the intern would be exceptionally helpful with regards 

to working with GIS maps and researching history of the sites. 

 

C. Site Visit Committee 

Commissioner Truesdale informed that the committee had visited the four properties on the 

agenda. 

 

Commissioner Johnson mentioned that she had been informed the Bartlett house would not be 

having student field trips due to the lack of funding from school districts.  

 

Commissioner Truesdale asked if the Commission still maintained any authority or oversight over 

the chapel in the Oakwood cemetery. He explained that there was graffiti on both the brick and the 

wood. He also inquired into the house on the corner of the Willowbrook and Manchester. He 

asked whether or not the City would be demolishing it or if the survey would be inclusive of that 

house. He mentioned that there was a broken window. Mr. Pennington explained that the survey 

would be inclusive, that the house had been potentially flagged as historic, and that the house is 

actually in the public right of way.  

 

9. Adjournment 

 The meeting was adjourned at 8:00 PM. 

 



CITY OF BELOIT 
REPORT TO THE BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: May 26, 2015 
 

Agenda Item: 4 File Number: COA-2015-16 

Applicant: Thieriesa Stott & Shirley  
Brunton 
 

Owner: St. Paul’s Episcopal Location: 212 W Grand Avenue 

Existing Zoning: PLI, Public Land or 
Institution 

Existing Land Use: Church Parcel Size: 1.606 Acres 

  
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Representatives of St. Paul’s Episcopal Church have submitted an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) 
to add a new accessory structure to the historic property. The proposed structure is an 8 x 10 foot shed located behind the 
church and rectory buildings. The shed will be used for storage by Old Rectory Sales and Service, a church-affiliated 
service that uses the rectory building to resell donated home furnishings.   
 
 
Consistency with the Historic Preservation Ordinance and Strategic Plan:  
Consideration of this request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Historic Preservation Ordinance. 
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.        
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The applicant, on behalf of St. Paul’s Episcopal Church, has proposed the installation of a shed in the rear of the 
church structure. The shed will be used to store furniture and household furnishings donated to the church to be 
resold by Old Rectory Sales and Service. 

 The proposed 8 x 10 foot standalone shed will sit on the northwest corner of the asphalt parking lot out of sight 
from the road. The structure is prefabricated and consists of four wood exterior walls and barn-style roof with 
shingles. A copy of the manufacturer’s pamphlet is attached and the entire pamphlet is available for review upon 
request. 

 The proposed shed will adhere to the side yard setback regulation of three feet for accessory structures per 
Section 6.3.3(b)(1) of the Zoning Code. 

 The Duratemp primed siding of the shed will be tan in color, with dark brown trim and red-brown shingles. Black, 
decorative hinges will be used for the double doors. 

 The approximate cost of the structure and installation of the structure is $1,515. The shed will be installed by 
Country Barns, a professional company specializing in on-site storage building assembly.  

 The attached COA Checklist evaluates this application against the General Review Criteria included in Section 
32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance. 

 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance establishes Specific Review Criteria to be used in 
evaluating COA applications. The following criteria are relevant to this application. 

(1) Height: The shed will be approximately 9 ½ feet tall and will not be visible from W. Grand Avenue. 
The height is significantly shorter than the church buildings. 

(2) Relationship of Building and Masses: The small footprint of the shed does not diminish the 
architectural value of the other structures and is compatible with the historic landmarks on the 
property. 

(3) Architectural Details: The proposed colors are similar to the colors of the principal structure and are 
compatible with the original character of this historic property. The wood siding, roof style, and double 
doors on the proposed shed are compatible with the original character of this historic property. 

 The proposed project meets the standards of Section 32.06(6)(b) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance. 
 
 

Sustainability:  
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness to add a new 



accessory structure at St. Paul’s Episcopal Church at 212 W. Grand Avenue, based on the standards and criteria 
contained in the Historic Preservation Ordinance and subject to the following conditions: 

1. Approval is only granted for a shed with the colors and physical characteristics detailed in the estimate 
from Country Barns. 

2. A Building Permit is required prior to starting work on this project. 
3. The shed must meet all standards regulating accessory structures set forth in 6.3.3(b)(1) of the Zoning 

Code, including a minimum interior setback of three feet. 
4. If any handicap accessible parking spaces in the back parking lot are removed due to placement of the 

shed, new spaces must be designated to ensure compliance with ADA accessible parking regulations. 
5. The project must be completed by May 26

th
, 2016. 

6. Any changes or additions to this Certificate of Appropriateness must be reviewed and approved by staff 
prior to the start of any work. Work done without prior approval will be subject to the issuance of 
correction orders or citations. 

 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Application, Cost Estimate, Location Map, Intensive Survey Form, Estimates/Examples, COA Checklist 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 



 



 
Storage Shed Location at 212 W Grand Ave 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 



 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         Estimates/Examples  



Planning and Building Services Division 
100 State Street, Beloit, WI  53511 Phone: (608) 364-6700 Fax: (608) 364-6609 

 

 
 

For property located at: 212 West Grand Avenue  
 

   GENERAL REVIEW CRITERIA 
YES NO N/A 

Has every reasonable effort been made to provide a compatible use 

for a property that requires alteration for use other than for its 

originally intended purpose? 

   

X 

Will the applicant retain distinguishing original qualities or character 

of a building, structure or site?  The removal or alteration of any 

historic material or distinctive architectural features should be 

avoided when possible. 

 

X 

  

Is the applicant proposing alterations that have a historical basis, 

rather than trying to create an earlier or later appearance? 

  X 

Has the applicant recognized and respected changes in the 

development of a building over time that may have acquired 

significance in their own right?  

 

 

  

X 

Has the applicant treated with sensitivity distinctive stylistic 

features, or examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a 

building, structure or site? 

 

 

  

X 

Has the applicant repaired, rather than replaced, deteriorated 

architectural features, wherever possible?  If replacement is 

necessary, the new material should match the material being 

replaced in composition, design color, texture and other visual 

qualities.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

Has the applicant avoided sandblasting and other cleaning methods 

that will damage the surface of the historic building?   

  X 

Has the applicant made every possible effort to protect and preserve 

archeological resources affected by or adjacent to any project? 

  X 

If a contemporary design for alterations and additions is proposed, 

does this design retain significant historical, architectural or cultural 

material and is the design compatible with the size, scale, color, 

material and character of the property and neighborhood? 

 

 

 

  

X 

Are new additions or alterations to buildings done in such a manner 

that if such additions or alterations were to be removed in the future, 

the essential form and integrity of the building would be 

unimpaired? 

The shed is on skids (not visible) and can moved or taken off 

property very easily. 

 

X 

  

 

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS CHECKLIST 
 



CITY OF BELOIT 
REPORT TO THE BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: June 16, 2015 
 

Agenda Item: 5 File Number: COA-2015-15 

Applicant: Robert LaFleur and 
Patricia Zody 
 

Owner: Robert LaFleur and Patricia 
Zody 
 

Location: 709 Harrison Avenue 

Existing Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family 
Residential 

Existing Land Use: Single-Family 
Residential 

Parcel Size: .0752 Acres 

  
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Robert LaFleur and Patricia Zody have submitted an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) for the 
replacement of decorative scallops at 709 Harrison Avenue. The current scallops above the front porch are rotted and 
have significantly deteriorated.  
 
Consistency with the Historic Preservation Ordinance and Strategic Plan:  
Consideration of this request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Historic Preservation Ordinance. 
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.        
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The applicant has proposed the replacement of 24 decorative scallops on the front porch of the subject property. 
 The existing scallops are in very poor condition due to rotting, paint peeling, and age.  
 The approximate cost for the materials and installation cost of the scallops is $3006.00. Scallops will be cut and 

installed by professional contractor. 
 The attached COA Checklist evaluates this application against the General Review Criteria included in Section 

32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance. 
 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance establishes Specific Review Criteria to be used in 

evaluating COA applications. The following criteria are relevant to this application. 
(1) Architectural Details: The identical replacement scallops are compatible with the original architectural 

style of the historic property. 
 The proposed project meets the standards of Section 32.06(6)(b) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance. 

 
 

Sustainability:  
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness to replace the 
decorative scallops at 709 Harrison Avenue, based on the standards and criteria contained in the Historic Preservation 
Ordinance and subject to the following conditions: 

1. Approval is only granted for scallops identical in color and contour of the current scallops to be replaced. 
2. A Building Permit is required prior to starting work on this project. 
3. The project must be completed by June 16, 2016. 
4. Any changes or additions to this Certificate of Appropriateness must be reviewed and approved by staff 

prior to the start of any work. Work done without prior approval will be subject to the issuance of 
correction orders or citations. 

 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: 
Location Map, Application, Intensive Survey Form, Cost Estimate, Photos, COA Checklist  

 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

Planning and Building Services Division 
100 State Street, Beloit, WI  53511 Phone: (608) 364-6700 Fax: (608) 364-6609 

 

 
 

For property located at: 709 Harrison Avenue 
 

   GENERAL REVIEW CRITERIA 
YES NO N/A 

Has every reasonable effort been made to provide a compatible use 

for a property that requires alteration for use other than for its 

originally intended purpose? 

   

X 

Will the applicant retain distinguishing original qualities or character 

of a building, structure or site?  The removal or alteration of any 

historic material or distinctive architectural features should be 

avoided when possible. 

 

X 

  

Is the applicant proposing alterations that have a historical basis, 

rather than trying to create an earlier or later appearance? 

  X 

Has the applicant recognized and respected changes in the 

development of a building over time that may have acquired 

significance in their own right?  

 

 

  

X 

Has the applicant treated with sensitivity distinctive stylistic 

features, or examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a 

building, structure or site? 

 

X 

  

 

Has the applicant repaired, rather than replaced, deteriorated 

architectural features, wherever possible?  If replacement is 

necessary, the new material should match the material being 

replaced in composition, design color, texture and other visual 

qualities.   

 

New scallops will have look identical to the current scallops. 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Has the applicant avoided sandblasting and other cleaning methods 

that will damage the surface of the historic building?   
X   

Has the applicant made every possible effort to protect and preserve 

archeological resources affected by or adjacent to any project? 
X   

If a contemporary design for alterations and additions is proposed, 

does this design retain significant historical, architectural or cultural 

material and is the design compatible with the size, scale, color, 

material and character of the property and neighborhood? 

 

 

 

  

X 

Are new additions or alterations to buildings done in such a manner 

that if such additions or alterations were to be removed in the future, 

the essential form and integrity of the building would be 

unimpaired? 

 

 

 

  

X 

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS CHECKLIST 
 



 

CITY OF BELOIT 
REPORT TO THE BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: June 16, 2015 
 

Agenda Item: 6 File Number: COA-2015-21 

Applicant: Patrick Gathof 
 

Owner: Patrick Gathof Location: 633 Church Street 

Existing Zoning: R-1B Single-family 
Residential 

Existing Land Use: Single-family 
Residential 

Parcel Size: .2136 Acre 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Patrick Gathof has submitted an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness for demolition of a garage located on the 
property located at 633 Church Street. This property is located in the College Park Historic District.  Section 32.07 of the 
Historic Preservation Ordinance grants the Landmarks Commission the authority to issue a Certificate of Appropriateness 
prior to demolition of any improvement in a historic district. 
 
 
Consistency with the Historic Preservation Ordinance and Strategic Plan:  
Consideration of this request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Historic Preservation Ordinance. 
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.  
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The applicant has proposed the demolition of a detached garage located at 633 Church Street. 
 The garage is currently in a state of disrepair. A visual inspection by the Site Visit Committee on June 8, 2015 

revealed a heavily worn roof, broken windows, and rotting wood. A large tree near the rear of the property has begun 
to push against the side of the garage, causing the entire structure to lean perceptibly.   

 Section 32.07(2) lists the standards by which to evaluate approval of demolitions. Section (f) states that any hardship 
or difficulty claimed by the owner cannot be self-created. The current dilapidated state of the garage is largely due to 
neglect of routine maintenance and a failure to mitigate the damage caused by the large tree pushing against the 
garage.  

 Sections (a) and (d) of the review standards help determine whether or not a historic structure is of architectural or 
historical significance and whether or not certain unique features would make reproduction of the structure difficult. 
After evaluation against the standards and a visual inspection, the structure appears to lack any type of historic 
significance or unique architectural features. The detached garage is an accessory structure and is not mentioned at 
all in the attached intensive survey.  Due to the lack of distinguishing architectural features and common design of 
the building, future replication of the garage would not be difficult.  

 Under normal circumstances, damage due to a self-created hardship would not justify the demolition of a structure in 
a historic district. However, due to the negligible contribution the garage currently makes to the historic district, 
demolition of the structure would not have a negative impact on the neighborhood. 

 

Sustainability:  
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness to demolish the 
detached garage located on the property at 633 Church Street, based on the standards and criteria contained in the Historic 
Preservation Ordinance and subject to the following conditions: 

1. The project must be completed by June 16, 2016. 
2. The applicant must provide Staff an estimate for both a structure rehabilitation option and structure 

demolition option before issuance of a demolition permit. 
3. Any changes or additions to this Certificate of Appropriateness must be reviewed and approved by staff prior 

to the start of any work. Work done without prior approval will be subject to the issuance of correction orders 
or citations. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location Map, Application, Photos, Intensive Survey Form, COA Demolition Checklist 



 
 
 

Current Condition of Garage at 633 Church St (06/08/15) 

 

 

 

 



 
 



 
 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 

 



 

Planning and Building Services Division 
100 State Street, Beloit, WI  53511 Phone: (608) 364-6700 Fax: (608) 364-6609 

 

 
 

              For property located at: 633 Church Street 

 

  DEMOLITION REVIEW STANDARDS 
YES NO N/A 

Whether the historic building is of such architectural or historic 

significance that demolition would be detrimental to the public 

interest and contrary to the general welfare of the people of the City 

and the State 

  

 

X 

 

 

Whether an historic building which has not been designated as an 

historic landmark, contributes to the distinctive architectural or 

historic character of the historic district as a whole and, therefore, 

should be preserved for the benefit of the people of the City and the 

State 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

Whether demolition of the historic building would be contrary to the 

purpose and intent of this chapter as set forth in Section 32.01 and to 

the objectives of the historic preservation plan for the applicable 

district as adopted by the City Council 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

Whether the historic building is of such old and unusual or 

uncommon design, texture, and/or material that it could not be 

reproduced or be reproduced only with great difficulty and/or 

expense 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

Whether retention of the historic building would promote the general 

welfare of the people of the City and the State by encouraging study 

of American history, architecture, and design or by developing an 

understanding of American culture and heritage 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

Whether any hardship or difficulty claimed by the owner is self-

created or the result of the owner’s failure to maintain the property in 

good repair 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The current disrepair of the detached garage appears to be due to 

neglect and deferred maintenance by the owner.  
   

Whether any new structure proposed to be constructed or any change 

in use proposed to be made is compatible with nearby historic 

buildings or the historic district in which the subject property is 

located 

 

 

 

  

X 

 

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS CHECKLIST 
 


	6-16-15.pdf
	4-21-15.pdf
	COA-2015-16, 212 W Grand Ave.pdf
	COA-2015-15, 709 Harrison Avenue, Scallop Replacement.pdf
	COA-2015-21, 633 Church Street, Garage Demo.pdf

